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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Max Estates Limited
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Interim Consolidated Financial Statements of Max Estates
Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the interim consolidated Balance Sheet as
at June 30, 2023, and the interim consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, interim consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the interim consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the three-month period then ended, and notes to the interim
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. These Interim Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared by
the Company solely for the purpose to facilitate the listing of equity shares of the Company
pursuant to SEBI Master Circular - SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023,
governing “(i)Scheme of Arrangement by Listed Entities and (ii) Relaxation under Sub-rule (7)
of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules,1957”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid interim consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principle generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(a) in the case of the interim consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at June
30,2023;
(b) in the case of the interim consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive

income, of the loss for the three-month period ended on that date;

(©) in the case of the interim consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the three-month
period ended on that date; and

(d) in the case of the interim consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, of the changes in equity
for the three-month period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Interim Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these interim consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are also responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the interim consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the interim consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these interim consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the interim consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the interim consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the interim consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures/joint operations of which
we are the independent auditors [and whose financial information we have audited, to express an
opinion on the interim consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the interim consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the interim consolidated financial statements, which have been audited
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other matters

The comparative financial information for the three-month period ended June 2022 including in
these Interim Standalone Financial Statements have not been subjected to audit but have been
approved by the board of Directors of the Company.

We did not audit the interim financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 06
(Six) subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 86,687.86 lacs as at June
30, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 883.17 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 9,312.14 lacs
for the three months period then ended. These interim financial statements and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures of such subsidiaries, is based solely on the repoji(s) of
other auditors. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other matters - restriction of use

The accompanying interim purpose consolidated financial statements is for the limited purpose
to facilitate the listing of equity shares of the Company, pursuant to SEBI Master Circular -
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023, governing “(i)Scheme of
Arrangement by Listed Entities and (ii) Relaxation under Sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Rules,1957” and accordingly, should not be used, referred to or distributed
for any other purpose or to any other party without our prior written consent To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Per I‘Kavin Tulsyan
Partner

Membership Number:108044
UDIN: 23108044BGYZKMS8302
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: October 19, 2023




Max Estates Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)_
Particular Notes As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 610.65 582.67
Investment properties 3A 1,45,299.84 1,40,508.92
Other intangible assets 4 381.40 333,05
Right-of-use assets 4B 1,270.76 1,317.55
Financial assets
(i) Investments 50 930.01 5,363.17
(if) Trade receivables 5 (i) 894.33 968.61
(iii) Other bank balances 5 (i) 1,106.31 1,001.35
(iv) Other financial assets 5(iv) 9,372.59 6,858.87
Deferred tax assets 16 2,041.53 1,998.45
Non-current tax assets 6 1,654.63 1,552.71
Other non current assets 7 6.969.27 533743
1,70,531.32 1,65.822.78
Current assets
Inventories 8 41,727.39 38,691.83
Financial assets
(i) Investments 9 (i) 22,302.78 10,596.36
(ii) Trade receivables 9 (ii) 1.062.16 578.06
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 (iii) 10,316.27 1,762.70
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 9 (iv) 2.832.26 2,37431
(vi) Other financial assets 9(v) 3,398.68 804.46
Other current assets 10 1,403.79 2,088.39
83,043.33 56.896.11
Total assets 2.53.574.65 222.718.89
Equity
Equity share capital 1
Pending for allotment 1 14,713.45 14,710.36
Other equity 12 1,02,662.36 1,06,410.14
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent company 1,17,375.81 1,21,120.50
Non-controlling interest 44 20,394.12 4,266.94
Total equity 1,37,769.93 1,25,387.44
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 85,629.03 75,081.26
(ii) Lease liabilities 4b 3.431.82 3,488.11
(iii) Other non current financial liabilities 14 6,152.93 4,536.85
Long term provisions 15 187.26 169.33
Deferred tax liabilities 16 519.44 1,083.41
95,920.48 84,358.96
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17(i) 1,130.61 7,358.04
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17(ii) 41.00 501.79
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17(ii) 2498.15 2,201.72
(iii) Lease liabilities 4b 244.39 236.66
(iv) Other current financial liabilities 17(iii) 3,518.66 1,655.24
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 19 24.83 -
Other current liabilities 20 12,121.45 767.41
Short term provisions 18 305.15 251.63
19.884.24 12,972.49
Total liabilities 1,15.804.72 97.331.45
Total equity and liabilities 2,53,574.65 2,22,718.89
Summary of accounting policies 2
Other notes to accounts 3-48
As per our report of even date
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Max Estates Limited
Chartered Accountants
I AI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 ,
Y Lol Voubew
per Pravin Tulsyan Dinesh Kumar Mittal Sahil Vachani
Partne (Director) (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Memberghip no: 108044 % DIN: 00761695 !
J Nitin Kumar Kansal Abhishek Mishra
Id 7 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Place : Noida
Date: October 19, 2023

Place : Gurugram
Date: October 19, 2023




Max Estates Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Notes  For the three months  For the three months
period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations 21 1,827.63 2,731.66
Other income 22 517.47 623.52
Total income 2,345.10 3,355.18
EXPENSES
Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others 23 - -
Change in inventories of constructed properties 24 - 395.27
Employee benefits expense 25 266.94 448.70
Finance costs 26 437.65 353.82
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 368.73 387.66
Other expenses 28 1,246.52 1,019.63
Total expenses 2319.84 2,605.08
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 25.26 750.10
Exceptional item 5() (4,445.36) -
Profit/(loss) before tax (4,420.10) 750.10
Tax expenses 30
Current income tax charge 61.04 20.00
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) (644.11) 95.30
Total tax expense (583.07) 115.30
Profit/(loss) after tax (3,837.03) 634.80
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (3,778.72) 628.54
Non-controlling interests (58.31) 6.26
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period:
Re-measurement loss/(gain) of defined benefit plans 31 13.27 298
Income tax effect {4.80) (0.75)
Net comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period: 8.47 2.23
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of tax 8.47 2.23
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 8.47 223
Non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (3,828.56) 637.03
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (3,770.25) 630.77
Non-controlling interests (58.31) 6.26
Earnings per equitv share (Nominal value of share Rs.10/-) 32
Basic (Rs.) (2.61) 0.43
Diluted (Rs.) (2.61) 0.43
(not annualised) (not annualised)
Summary of accounting policies 2
Other notes to accounts 3-48
As per our report of even date
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
or S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Max Estates Limited
ered Accountants
“irm Registration Number: 301 /L. 05
) N ‘ ] a lu
per Rravin Tulsyan @U\JM Qow. U Cu —_—
Partn . A
Membership no: 108044 Dinesh Kumar Mittal Sahil Vachani ) )
(Director) (Managing Director & Chief Executive

DIN: 00040000 DIN: 00761695

Nitin Kumar Kansal Abhishek Mishra

Place : Gurugram (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Date: October 19,2023 Place : Noida

Date: October 19, 2023




Max Estates Limited
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

a) Equity share capital
Particulars Nos. (Rs, in Lakhs)
Shares of Rs, 10/- each, issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at March 31, 2022 7,79,10,000 7,791.00
Less: Merger effect {7,79,10,000) (7,791)
As gt March 31, 2022 - -
As at March 31, 2023
Add: Shares issued under Employee stock option scheme 30918 3.09
Less: Adjustment for merger (30918) (3.09)
As at June 30, 2023 - B
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Reserves and surplus
Capital reserve |  Securities nployee stock earnings | Total other equity Shares pendis Non-controlling
(refer note 12) premium options {refer note 12) luume ng interest Total Equity
(refer note 12) | outstanding (refer (refer note 44)
note 12)
B - 401.20 4,469.47) 14.068.27)| - 3423. (645.00)
13,042.52 50.084.05 (229.92) 45.759.07 1,08,655.72 14,694.66 013. 1,34,364.29
13.042.52 50.084.05 161.28 41.289.60 1,04.57745 14,694.66 4.437. 1,13,709.29
- - - 628.54 628.54 - 6. 634.80
Other comprehensive income for the year - 298 298 - - 298
Net movement in Non-controlling interest - - - - - - 857.00 857.00
Shares issued under Employee stock option scheme - R4 - - 6.84 1.1 - 1795
Forfeiture of Shares under Employee stock option scheme - - (23.20) 2320 - - - -
£ I ized during the year = - 16.22 - 16.22 - - 16.22
2022 13.042.52 50,090.89 154.30 4194432 105.152.04 13,705.77 S30044 | 1.35738.25 |
|As at April 01, 2022 13,042.52 50.084.05 161.28 41.289.60 1,04.57745 14,694.66 4437.18 1,13.709.29
Profit for the year 1,901.49 1,901.49 - (54.79) 1,846.70
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.01 0.01 0.01
Adjustment for capital reduction in Phamax Corporation Limited (183.66) (183.66) (183.66)
Net movement in Non-controlling interest - - (115.45) (115.45)
Shares issued under Employee stock option scheme 50.75 (41.58) 917 15.70 2487
Forfeiture of Shares under Employee stock option scheme (8.49) 8.49 - -
Expense recogmized during the vear 105.69 105.69 105.69
As at March 31, 2023 13.042.52 49.951.14 216.90 43,199.59 1,16,410.15 14,710.36 4,266.94 1,25,38745
Profit for the period - - - (3,778.72) 3,778.72) - (583D (3,837.03)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - 8.47 8.47 - - 847
Net I for N Iling interest - - - - - - 16,185.49 16,185.49
Shares issued under Employee stock option scheme - 5.00 - - 5.00 3.09 - 8.09
Expense recognized during the period - - 17.46 - 17.46 - - 17.46
13.042.52 49.95%6.14 234.36 39,429.34 1,02,662.36 14,713.45 20,394.12 1,37.769.93
Summary of accounting policies 2
Other notes to accounts 3-48
As per our report of even date
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Max Estates Limited
.

/in Tulsyan Dinesh Kumar Mittal Sahil Vachani
(Director) (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Memberhip no: 108044 DIN: 00040000 DIN: 00761695
LususHumak ” ‘
Nitin Kumar Kansal Abhishek Mishra
(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Place : Gurugram Place : Noida

Date: October 19, 2023 Date: October 19, 2023




Max Estates Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

{Rs in Lakhs)
For the three months For the three months
neriod ended neriod ended
June 30, 2023 June 30,2022
Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (4.420.10) 750.10
Adiustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional item 4.445.36 -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 368.73 387.66
Expense recognised on employee stock option scheme 1592 14.16
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (276.46) (226.13)
Gain on sale of financial instruments (65.37) (36.79)
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back (13.15) -
Interest income (127.36) (309.41)
Finance costs 437.65 353.82
Operating profit before working capital changes 365.22 933.41
‘Working capital adjustments:
I /(d ) in trade payabl (151.21) 516.32
Increase/ (decrease) in other current and non current financial liability 451.74 (1,026.39)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 71.45 (649.87)
Increase/ (decrease) in other current and non-current labilities 11,353.68 2,106.16
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities - -
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (409.82) 318.61
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (3,035.56) (28,876.58)
Degcrease / (increase) in other current and non current assets 698.09 (516.81)
Decrease / (increase) in current and non current financial assets (6,357.38) (248.05)
Cash generated from operations 2,986.21 (27,443.20)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (96.26) (81.96)
Net cash flows from/(used) in operating activities 2,889.95 (27,525.16)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equif and 1 property (including i ible assets and capital advances- (3,207.25) (3,893.71)
net of interest capitalised)
Interest received 68.24 456.95
Net (i redemption of fixed deposi (562.91) 34,716.80
Sale of current investments 10,832.85 -
Purchase of current i (22,209.64) 3,450.26
(Purchase)/ Proceeds from sale of non current investments - (1,848.57)
Net cash flows from/(used) in investing activities (15,078.71) 32,881.73
Financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock option plan 8.09 20.64
Repayment of lease liability (including interest) (150.54) (155.09)
Sale of stake in subsidiary 14,490.49 -
Proceeds/(repayments) of short term borrowings (net) (6,227.43) (509.00)
Repayments of long term borrowings (254.93) (3,657.41)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 13,802.09 9,350.55
Interest paid (925.44) (862.08)
Net cash flows from financing activities 20,742.33 4,187.61
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 8,553.57 9,544.18
Add: Merger adjustment - 211.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,762.70 272.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end 10.316.27 10.027.67
ni ivalen:
As at As at
un 023 __June 30. 2022
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 3.545.60 2,287.07
Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 3 months 6.509.01 -
Chegues on hand - 7.732.62
Cash on hand 26166 7.98
10,316.27 10,027.67
S v of I 2
Other notes to accounts 3-48
As per our report of even date
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
or S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Max Estates Limited
“hartered Accountants
" AT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 '
NROLTIVYY
k Quinet {oloy Voabeta
per Pravin Tulsyan Dinesh Kumar Mittal Sahil Vachani
Partn (Director) (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Meml DIN: 00040000 DIN: 00761695
e
Nitin Kumar Kansal Abhishek Mishra
(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Place : Gurugram Place : Noida

Date: October 19, 2023 Date: October 19, 2023




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2023

1 Corporate Information

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements comprise financial statements of Max Estates Limited
(the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the period ended June 30, 2023. The
Company is registered in India under Companies Act, 2013 and was incorporated on March 22, 2016.

Registered office of the Company is located at 419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar, Village Railmajra,
Tehsil Balachaur, Nawanshehar, Punjab - 144533.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of:

- Construction and development of residential and commercial properties;

- Making investments in various companies and primarily engaged in growing and nurturing these
business investments;

- Providing facility management services and managed office services

- Providing shared services to its other group companies

During the current period, the Company has completed the merger of Max Ventures and Industries
'Limited ( ‘Transferor Company’) (appointed date April 01, 2022). Pursuant to the scheme of merger
filed under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Hon’ble NCLT”) vide its order dated July 03, 2023, approved the
aforesaid Scheme.

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
by the Board of directors of the Company on October 19, 2023.

2 Accounting policies
2.1  a) Basis of preparation

These Interim Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared by the Company for the purpose to
facilitate the listing of equity shares of the Company pursuant to SEBI Master Circular -
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023, governing “(i)Scheme of Arrangement
by Listed Entities and (ii) Relaxation under Sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Rules,1957”.

This note provides a list of summary of accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Interim
consolidated Financial Statements.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of division II
of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act 2013 (Ind AS Compliant Schedule III).

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value

@) Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

(i1),.==2=Defined benefit plans - plan assets

R Bay,
Sl ‘\‘\/60’.




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2023

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to
nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000) except when otherwise stated

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group.

b) Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements (CFS) comprises the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at June 30, 2023. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if
the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

P Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

P The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

P The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

P Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

P The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

P The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements from the date the Group gains control
until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements to ensure conformity

with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., period ended June 30. When the end of the reporting
period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation
purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent
to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable

to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
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amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements at the
acquisition date.

(i) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary.

(i) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
IND AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits
and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

»  Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost

P Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

» Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

P Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

P Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

P Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

or liabilities.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquired entity's net identifiable assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interests' share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if it results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

2.2 Summary of accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

(i)  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(i)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(i) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting period,ssseses,_

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when:

(i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii)It is due to settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes,
duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and
installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of GST credit availed
wherever applicable. Cost includes borrowing cost for long term construction projects if recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant, property and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under
development as at the balance sheet date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

In respect to tangible and intangible assets acquired under the business transfer agreement, the Group
has calculated depreciation/amortization on straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on a
technical estimate of the residual useful lives estimated by an independent engineering consultancy
professional firm.

In respect of other assets, depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis on straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives estimated by the management and ja*ffitsmanner prescribed in Schedule IT of the
Companies Act 2013. The useful life is as follows:
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Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Leasehold Improvements Over life of lease or life of asset whichever is less
Factory building 30
Other building 60
Plant and Equipment 15-25
Office Equipment 3-5
Computers & Data Processing Units 3 -6
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Motor Vehicles 3-8
(ii) Investment Property

Recognition and initial measurement:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction costs The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price When significant parts of the investment property are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives.

Property held under lease is classified as investment property when it is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in
production or administrative functions. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in statement of profit and loss as incurred The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met When significant parts of
the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the straight-line method, over the useful lives of
the assets are as follows:

Asset category' Estimated life
Buildings and related equipment 15 to 60
Plant & Machinery & other equipment 6to 10

Estimated useful life of Leasehold land is over the period of lease

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment properly is disclosed in the notes Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation

performed by the company applying a valuation model acceptable.

De-recognition
Investment properties are de-recognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in
statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.




o
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Building and related equipments 15 to 60 years
Plant & machinery, furniture & fixtures and other equipments 6 to 10 years

c. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost,
are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period
in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as
appropriate and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
life of 3-6 years.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

(a.) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale

(b.) Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

(c.) How the asset will generate future economic benefits

(d.) The availability of resources to complete the asset

(e.) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset
begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period
of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

.-==dluring the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
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d. Business combinations

Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses, between entities within a Company. Business combinations involving entities or
businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interests method. The pooling
of interest method is considered to involve the following:

@) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

(>ii) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies.

(i)  The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is
restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding
period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.
However, if business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period
information shall be restated only from that date.

(iv)  The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the
transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial
statements of the transferee.

e. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates
the asset's, recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) net fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net fair value less cost of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For
the remaining economic life of the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU), a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash
flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In this case, the growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
_Iemaining economic life.
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Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non — financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which in our

case are the operating segments.
f. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or
through profit & loss)

- Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. The difference between
the transaction amount and amortised cost in case of interest free loan to subsidiaries based on expected
ent period is considered as deemed investment.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

(1) Debt instruments at amortized cost
(ii) Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met;

(i) Business model test: The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to
realise its fair value change), and

(ii) Cash flow characteristics test: Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discount the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets. When calculating the effective interest rate the Group estimate the
expected cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments, Any financial instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a Debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in statement of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains or losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these Debt instruments is

included in other income.
Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IND AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrament as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial

et 8 itay ) . . h . ] ..
74 gsaz/,go“}assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group's statement of financial position)
%" "\ Nhen:
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e rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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-the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass through"
arrangement and either;

(a) the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
(b) the Group has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
ownership of the financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Group has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk

exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; e.g. Loans, security deposits, trade receivable, bank

balance.
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

The Group follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition. the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12- months
ECL.
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Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business model
as aresult of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's operations. Such changes
are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins
or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day
of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not
restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

(ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group
financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade
deposits, retention money and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognised in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However,
the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holds aragss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
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when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit

and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based
on the terms of the contract. On issuance of the convertible instruments, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This
amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until
it is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32
criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated
income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
instruments based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are initially recognised.

g Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The Group has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers' to
recognise revenue in the Ind AS financial statements. The Group satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Company performs; or

b) The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

¢) The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where any of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at
the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the custor;gbesg_]_h{ following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized: a
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Revenue is recognised over period of time in respect of rental services on an accrual basis, in
accordance with the terms of the respective contract as and when the Company satisfies performance
obligations by delivering the services as per contractual agreed terms.

Revenue from shared services
Revenue is recognised over period of time in respect of shares services on an accrual basis, in
accordance with the terms of the respective contract as and when the Company satisfies performance
obligations by delivering the services as per contractually agreed terms.

Revenue from project management consultancy / secondment
Revenue from project management consultancy / secondment is recognized as per the terms of the
agreement on the basis of services rendered.

Gain on sale of investments
On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and net disposal proceeds
is recognised to the profit and loss statement.

Facility Management
Revenue from facility management is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of

services rendered.

Revenue from constructed properties

Revenue is recognised over time if either of the following conditions is met:
a. Buyers take all the benefits of the property as real estate developers construct the property.
b. Buyers obtain physical possession of the property
c. The property unit to be delivered is specified in the contract and real estate entity does not
have an alternative use of the unit; the buyer does not have the discretion to terminate the
contract and the entity has right to payment for work completed to date.

In case none of these conditions is met, revenue would be recognised at a point in time when the
control of the property is passed on to the customer.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from shared services because the receipt of
consideration is conditional on successful completion of the contract. Upon completion of the contract
and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade
receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of
financial assets in section €) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section €) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to
the customer).

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.
h. Inventories

Inventories in real estate business
Inventories also comprise completed units for sale and property under construction (Work in progress):

(A) Completed Unsold inventory is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
by including cost of land, materials, services and related overheads.

(B) Work in progress is valued at cost. Cost comprises value of land (including development rights),
materials, services and other overheads related to projects under construction.

i. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the income
computation and disclosure standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

P In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
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» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

P In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside the statement of
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

GST (Goods and Service tax)/ Sales tax/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on
incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST (Goods and Service tax)/ Sales tax/ value
added taxes paid, except:

» When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as

part of the expense item, as applicable
» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
Other current assets or liabilities in the balance sheet.

j- Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate [EIR]. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset
until such time that the asset are substantially ready for their intended use. Where fund are borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalized represents the actual borrowing incurred.

Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance project, the income
generated from such current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where
funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalized is calculated
using a weighted average of rate applicable to relevant general borrowing of the Group during the
year. Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended
periods when the active development on the qualifying project is interrupted. All other borrowing costs

it

are expensed in the period in which, . Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
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an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

k. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
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The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which

they are earned.
L Provision and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. the Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

m. Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund
The Group has contributed to employees provident fund benefits through a trust "Max Financial

Services Limited Provident Fund Trust" managed by Max Financial Services Limited (erstwhile Max
India Limited) whereby amounts determined at a fixed percentage of basic salaries of the employees
are deposited to the trust every month. The benefit vests upon commencement of the employment. The
interest rate payable by the trust to the beneficiaries every year is notified by the government and the
Group has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of
the trust and the notified interest rate. The Group has obtained actuarial valuation to determine the
shortfall, if any, as at the Balance Sheet date. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund as an expense, when the employee renders the related service.

Gratuity
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial

valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Max Speciality Films
Limited, subsidiary of the Company has also made contribution to Life Insurance Corporation (LIC)
towards a policy to cover the gratuity liability of the employees to an extent. The difference between
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the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year-end and the balance of funds with LIC
is provided for as liability in the books.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit (liabilities/assets).
The Group recognized the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee
benefit expenses in statement of profit and loss

(1) Service cost comprising current service cost, past service cost, gain & loss on curtailments and non-
routine settlements.

(ii) Net interest expenses or income

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit .The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting

date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet as the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. the liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Long term incentive plan
Employees of the Group receives defined incentive, whereby employees render services for a specified
period. Long term incentive is measured on accrual basis over the period as per the terms of contract.

n. Share-based payments

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transaction,
whereby employees render services as a consideration for equity instruments (equity- settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is

made using an appropriate valuation model. >
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That cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and
loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at
the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the
expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair
value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of diluted earnings per share.

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

p- Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

q. Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Group’s consolidated Ind
AS financial statements are presented in Indian (Rs.) which is also the Group’s functional and
presentation currency. <
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Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the time of the transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the balance sheet date

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is

determined.
r. Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(1) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(if) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
date are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i)  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(i)  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

(iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring
fair value measurement, such as derivative instggrme;__\ntéineasured at fair value.
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External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and financial assets
and significant liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the
management. The management decides, after discussions with the Group's external valuers which
valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies.

The management in conjunction with the Group's external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 39)
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 39)
Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 39)

t. Government Grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income
on the basis of accomplishment of export obligations.

The Group has inventorized the duty saved on import of raw material and recognised Government
grant as liability. Deferred income is recognised in statement of profit and loss as and when export
obligations are fulfiled and government grant is reduced by deferred income recognised.

2.3 Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's Consolidated Ind AS financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.

(a) Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group has taken various commercial properties on leases. the Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property, and that it does not retain all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
operating leases. Refer Note 4b.
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws,
and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships
and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Group establishes
provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety
of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality
rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers
the interest rates of long-term government bonds where remaining maturity if such bond corresponding
to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality tables for the specific countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are
based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about the assumptions used, including a
sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 36.

(¢) Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. The Group uses Net asset value for valuation of investment in mutual
funds. Refer Note 39 related to Fair value disclosures.




Max Estates Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2023

24 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:
A. Amended standards adopted by the Group

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments does not have any material impact on the consolidated financial statements as there is
no change in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of €errors.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments toInd AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The Group has given accounting policies disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended
requirements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases
and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101.

The amendments does not have any material impact on the financial statements.
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Max Estates Limited
Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

4.  Other Intangible assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular Computer software Total Intangible assets
under development

Gross carrying amount

March 31, 2022 17.85 17.85 -
Add Merger Effect 8.23 8.23 12.95
As at April 01, 2022 (Post Merger Effect) 26.08 26.08 12.95
Additions -
Disposals - - -
June 30, 2022 26.08 26.08 12.95
March 31, 2022 17.85 17.85 -
Add Merger Effect 8.23 8.23 12.95
As at April 01, 2022 (Post Merger Effect) 26.08 26.08 12.95
Additions 329.11 329.11 -
Disposals - - -
March 31, 2023 355.19 355.19 12.95
Add Merger Effect -

As at April 01, 2023 (Post Merger Effect) 355.19 355.19 12.95
Additions 59.43 59.43 -
Disposals - - -
June 30, 2023 414.62 414.62 12.95
Amortisation

March 31, 2022 14.40 14.40 -
Add Merger Effect 7.37 7.37 12.95
As at April 01, 2022 (Post Merger Effect) 21.77 21.77 12.95
Amortisation charge 1.04 - -
Disposals - - -
June 30, 2022 22.81 21.77 12.95
March 31, 2022 14.40 14.40 -
Add Merger Effect 7.37 7.37 12.95
As at April 01, 2022 (Post Merger Effect) 21.77 21.77 12.95
Amortisation charge 0.37 0.37 -
Disposals - - -
March 31, 2023 22.14 22.14 12.95
Add Merger Effect - - -
As at April 01, 2023 (Post Merger Effect) 22.14 22.14 12.95
Amortisation charge 11.08 11.08 -
Disposals - - -
June 30, 2023 33.22 33.22 12.95

Net carrying amount

June 30, 2023 381.40 381.40 2
March 31, 2023 333.05 333.05 -
June 30, 2022 3.27 4.31 -
As at March 31, 2022 3.45 3.45 -

* also refer note 46




Max Estates Limited
Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

4b Right of use assets

The Group has lease contracts for buidlings from related parties. The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the
lessor’s title to the leased assets. The Group is restricted from assigning or sub leasing the leased assets.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year/period:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Building Total
As at March 31, 2022 2,482.66 2,482.66
Merger effect - -
As at April 1, 2022 2,482.66 2,482.66
Additions - -
Deletion - -
Depreciation expense 88.07 -
As at June 30, 2022 2,570.73 2,482.66
As at March 31, 2022 - -
As at March 31, 2022 2,482.66 2,482.66
Merger effect - -
As at April 1, 2022 2,482.66 2,482.66
Additions 1,153.42 1,153.42
Deletion (2,050.96) (2,050.96)
Depreciation expense (267.57) (267.57)
As at March 31, 2023 1,317.55 1,317.55
Additions - -
Deletion - -
Depreciation expense (46.79) (46.79)
As at June 30,2023 1,270.76 1,270.76

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year/period:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Building Total
As at March 31, 2022 2,838.51 2,838.51
Merger effect - -
As at April 01, 2022 2,838.51 2,838.51
Additions - -
Accretion of interest 77.79 77.79
Payments (155.09) (155.09)
As at June 30, 2022 2,761.21 2,761.21
As at April 1, 2022 2,838.51 2,838.51
Merger effect - -
As at March 31, 2022 2,838.51 2,838.51
Additions 1,073.51 1,073.51
Accretion of interest 377.56 377.56
Payments (564.81) (564.81)
As at March 31, 2023 3,724.77 3,724.77
Additions -
Accretion of interest 101.99 101.99
Payments (150.54) (150.94)
As at June 30, 2023 3,676.22 3,676.21
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at June 30, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 244.39 236.66
Non-current lease liabilities 3,431.82 3,488.11

Total 3,676.21 3,724.77




Max Estates Limited
Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

* The group has subleased one of the rental properties where Company is lessee to another tenant. The sub lease is in nature
of finance lease hence, right to use asset corresponding to this lease has been derecognized in the books. Lease Liability is

The details regarding the maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023 on an undiscounted

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at June 30, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
Within one year 636.44 541.06
After one year but not more than five years 2,670.52 2,380.33
More than five vears 2,351.38 1,837.03
Total 5,658.34 4,758.42

Considering the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities for all the period presented is 10.5%-11%.
The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the three months ended  For the three months ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 46.79 88.07
Interest expense on lease liabilities 101.99 77.79
Rent expenses 5.34 1.17
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 154.12 167.03




Max Estates Limited

Notes to Ci lidated Ind AS Fi ial S for the three months period ended June 30, 2023
5, Non-Current financial assets
(i) Investments
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
a) Investment in preference shares (valued at fair value through profit and loss) (unquoted)
Azure Hospitality Private Limited# - 4,445.06
16,234,829 (March 31, 2022 - 16,234,829) Series-C preference shares of nominal value Rs. 20 each fully paid up
b) Smart Joules Private Limited (unquoted)
232 (March 31, 2023 - 232) Series - A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of norminal value Rs. 10 each 200.00 200.00
fully paid up*
¢) Aliferous Technologies Private Limited (unquoted)
461 (March 31, 2023 - 461) Compulsorily Covertible Prefe Shares (Seed Series A1 CCPS) of Nominal Value 49.92 45.92
Rs. 100 each fully paid up**
d) Investment in IAN Fund (unquoted)
226,589.69 (March 31, 2023 - 226,589.69) units of nominal value Rs. 100 each fully paid up 223,30 21927
¢) Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Direct Plan *** 456.79 448.92
930,01 5.363.17
Non-Current 930.01 5.363.17_
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 930.01 5,363.17

Note:
*0.001% Non cumulative Series A Compulsory convertible par
**0.001% Non lative Compulsory convertible p

share,

after

preference shares will be convertible into one equity share per preference share, maximum after ten years from the date of issue.
shares will be convertible into one equity share per pr
committed to invest further Rs. 49.90 lakhs towards these preference shares. Refer note 35B.

*%* Pledged as security for Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) for borrowings

years from the date of issue. The Group has

# During the period, consequent to reassessment of fair value of investment in Azure Hospitality Private Limited, the Group (through its subsidiary, Max I Limited) had recorded a fair value loss through

statement of profit and loss of Rs. 4445.06 lakhs and presented as exceptional item.

(ii) Trade receivables

Trade receivable (unsecured) 894.33 968.61
894.33 968.61
==

Trade Receivable Ageing
As at June 30, 2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (Rs. in_Lakhs)
Particulars Notdue Lessthané 6 Months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
months
(I) Undi Trade ivabl idered good 894.33 - - - - 894.33
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables-Which have significant in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables-Credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Undisputed Trade ivabl idered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade reccivables-credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 894.33 - - - - $94.33
Trade Receivable Ageing
As at March 31, 2023 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment (Rs. in_Lakhs)
Particulars Notdue Lessthan6 6 Months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
months
{T) Undi: d Trade ivabl idered good 968.61 - - - - 968.61
(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables-Which have significant in credit risk - - - - - -
(iif) Undisputed Trade receivables-Credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Undi Trade receivabl idered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade reccivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 968.61 - - - - 968.61
(iii) Other bank balances
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months 1,106.31 1.001.35
1.106.31 1,001.35
S S
(iv) Other non current financial assets

Security deposits {also refer note 41(b) for deposits made with related parties} 6,929.37 4357.14

Rent receivable (Equalisation) 155.42 116.98

Lease Receivable 2,287.80 238475

9.372.59 6,858.87
Non-current tax assets
Advance income tax and tax deducted at source 1.654.63 1.552.71
1.654.63 1.552.71
ik S L
Other non current assets
Uunsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances (refer note 35b) 6,951.72 5,329.50
Balance with statutory authorities 17.55 7.93
6.969.27 533743




Max Estates Limited

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 120 days.
For terms and conditions relating to bles from related parties, refer note 41(b)

Trade Receivable Ageing
As at June 30, 2023

4]

ding for following periods from due date of payment

Notes to C lidated Ind AS Fi ial S for the three months period ended June 30, 2023
(Rs, in Lakhs)
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
8 Inventories (at cost or Net realisable value whichever is less)
Construction materials 27.06 8.35
Plot and construction work-in-progress 186.75 186.75
Land including ancilliary cost 41,513.58 38,496.73
41,727.39 38,691.83
Current financial assets
(i) Other investment
Quoted mutual funds (valued at fair value through profit and loss)
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 2,973.81 1,501.96
Face value - Rs. 10 ( June 30, 2023 : 1,16,796.91 units, March 31, 2023 - Units - 60057)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 4,022.56 1,602.92
Face value - Rs. 10 ( June 30, 2023: 10,88,203.28 units, March 31, 2023 - Units - 441477.23)
SBI Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 3,609.76 1,501.95
Face value - Rs. 10 ( June 30, 2023: 1,00,612.61 units, March 31, 2023 - Units - 42629.04)
UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct - Growth 2,746.86 1,502.17
Face value - Rs. 10 { June 30, 2023 : 86,100.66 units, March 31, 2023 - Units - 40613.46)
DSP Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 2,829.52 2,442.07
Face value - Rs. 10 ( June 30, 2023 : 80,544.01 units, March 31, 2023 - Units - 76003.98)
Units: 15,709.69, NAV - 1220.28 (Overnight)
Tata Liquid Fund 6,120.27 2,045.29
Face value - Rs. 10 ( June 30, 2023 : 1,69,349.00 units, March 31, 2023 - Units - 57590.82)
22,302.78 10,596.36
Aggregate value of quoted investments 22,302.78 10,596.36
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 22,302.78 10,596.36
(ii) Trade receivables
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 1,062.16 578.06
1,062.16 578.06

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Not due Less than 6

month

Particulars

year

6 months - 1

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 283.33 614.65
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- which have
significant in credit risk
(iif) Undisputed Trade receivabl
(iv) Undisputed Trade receivabl id
(v) Disputed Trade receivabl hich have
significant increase in credit risk - -
(v1) Disputed Trade receivables-credit Impaired - -

Credit impaired - -

P

ed good - -

1

35.56

9.55

10.51

8.56

1,062.16

Total 283.33 614.65

Trade Receivable Ageing
As at March 31,2023

1.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

35.56

9.55

Less than 6
month

Particulars Not due

Year

6 months - 1

1-2 years

2-3 years

10.51

8.56

1,062.16

(Rs. in Lakhs)

More than 3 years

Total

32.93 494.71

(i) Undisputed Trade receivabl idered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- which have
significant in credit risk - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables-Credit impaired - -
(iv) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables-which have
significant increase in credit risk - -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-credit Impaired

10.35

17.57

13.31

9.19

578.06

Total 32,93 494.71

10.35

17.57

1331

9.19

578.06




Max Estates Limited

Notes to C: lidated Ind AS Fi ial S for the three months period ended June 30, 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs}
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 3,545.60 1,705.68
Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months 6,509.01 -
Cash on hand 261.66 57.02
10,316.27 1,762.70
(iv) Bank Balances other than (jii) above
Deposits:
Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months 2.832.26 2,374.31
2,832.26 2,374.31
(v) Other current fi ial assets ed idered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 2,788.14 47.09
Interest accrued on deposits and others 201.04 141.93
Other recoverable - 119.59
Rent equalisation 27872 426.05
Lease Receivable 130.78 69.80
3,398.68 804.46
Break up of financial assets at amortised cost
Non-current financial assets
Trade receivables {refer note 5(ii)} 894.33 968.61
Other bank balances {refer note 5(iv}} 1,106.31 1,001.35
Current financial assets
Trade receivables {refer 9(ii)} 1,062.16 578.06
Cash and cash equivalents {refer 9(iii)} 10,316.27 1,762.70
Other bank balances {refer note 9(iv})} 2,832.26 2,374.31
Other current financial assets {refer 9(vi)} 3,398.68 804.46
19,610.01 7.489.49
10. Other current assets (unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Other advances* 585.36 561.05
Prepaid expenses 75.19 108.49
Balance with statutory authorities 743.24 1,418.85
1,403.79 2,088.39

*refer note 41(b) for advances to related parties




Masx Estates Limited
Notes to C i Ind AS Fi i for the three months veriod ended June 30. 2023

11()  Equity share capital
(Rs. in Lakhs
As at Asat

fume 30, 223 Margh ¥1, 2023

a)} Authorized share capital

150,000,000 (March 31. 2023 - 150.000.000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 15,000.00 1500000
15.000.00 15.000.00

Issued. subscribed and fully paid-un

Nil (March 31, 2023 - Nil ) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up - -

Add: Shares issued under Emplovee stock option scheme 30.918.00 3.09

Less: Adiustment for merger (30.918.00) {3.09

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital - -

*Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme of amal ion, and in ideration of the transfer, 1 {one) equity shares of the face value of INR 10 each fully paid-up of the Company are required to be issued
against every 1 (one) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up held by the shareholders of Max Ventures and Industries Limited. Consequent to this, the Company shall issue 147,134,544 equity shares of
INR 10 each fully paid-up for 147,134,544 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up of Max Ventures and Industries Limited.

These shares have been disclosed as 'Share capital pending issuance' as at March 31, 2023 and as at June 30, 2023,

**As an integral part of the scheme, and, upon the coming into effect of the scheme, the authorized share capital of the Company shall automatically stand increased, without any further act, instrument or deed
on the part of the Company, such that upen the coming into effect of this scheme, the authorized share capital of the Company shall be INR 1,500,000.000/- divided into 150,000,000 equity shares of INR 10
each. Consequently, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company shall, upon the coming into effect of this scheme and without any further act or deed, be and stand altered, modified and
substituted pursuant to section 13, 61 and 230 and 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, as the case may be.

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

June 30, 2023 March 31,2023
Eqquity shares No. of shares {Rs. in_Lakhs) No. of shares (Hs. in_Lakhs)
Add: Shares issued for stock options exercised - - - -
Add: Shares issued during the year/period 30,918 3.09 - -
Less: adjusted due to Merger {306,918 (3.09)
At the end of the year/period - - - -

©) Terms and rights attached to eauitv shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian

rupees. The dividend if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

charehaldare

d) Details of shareholders holding more than $% shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Mo, of shares %e hcld Mo, of shares % held

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Nil - 0.00% - 0.00%

¢} Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five vears immediatelv preceding the reporting date- Nil

f) Shareholding pattern of the Promoter

Namie of the Sharcholder June 30, 2023 March 31,2023
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Nil - 0.00% - 0.00%

g) For employee stock option plan, refer note no 38




Max Estates Limited

Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

12.  Other equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
June 30,2023 March 31, 2023
Capital reserve (refer note a below) 13,042.52 13,042.52
Securities premium account (refer note b below) 49,956.14 49,951.14
Employee stock options outstanding (refer note ¢ below) 234.36 216.90
Retained earnings (refer note d below) 39,429.34 43,199.59
1,02,662.36 1,06,410.15
Notes:
a) Capital reserve
At the beginning of the year/period 13,042.52 13,042.52
13,042.52 13,042.52
b) Securities premium
At the beginning of the year/period 49,951.14 50,084.05
Add: premium on issue of employee stock options 5.00 50.75
Less: Adjustment for capital reduction in PCL - (183.66)
49,956.14 49,951.14
¢) Employee stock options outstanding
At the beginning of the year/period 216.90 161.28
Add: expense recognized during the year/period 17.46 105.69
Less: expiry of share option under ESOP scheme - (50.07)
234.36 216.90
d) Retained earnings (attributable to equity holders of the parent)
At the beginning of the year/period 43,199.59 41,289.60
Profit for the year/period : (3,778.72) 1,901.49
Expiry of share option under ESOP scheme - 8.49
Re-measurement of post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) (item of OCI) 8.47 0.01
39,429.34 43,199.59

a) Capital reserve

The Group recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the entity’s own equity instruments to capital reserve

b) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as

issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

¢) Employee stock options outstanding

The employee stock options based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under

Employee stock option plan.

d) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group entities has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders.
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Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

13. Borrowings

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Non-current borrowings :
From banks
From financial institutions
Term loans (secured) [refer note (i) to (v)) below] 77,015.69 67,301.75
Vehicle loans (secured) [refer note (vi) below] 30.98 30.19
Others
Debt portion of compulsory convertible debentures [refer note (vii) below] 8,582.36 7,749.32
Current maturity of long term borrowings :
Term loans (secured) [refer note (i) to (v) below] 1,109.35 1,081.06
Vehicle loans (secured) [refer note (vi) below] 21.26 17.61
Total 86,759.64 76,179.93
Less: amount disclosed under "current financial liabilities" [refer note 18(i)] 1,130.61 1,098.67
85,629.03 75,081.26
Aggregate Secured loans 78,177.28 68,430.61
Aggregate Unsecured loans 8,582.36 7,749.32




Max Estates Limited

Notes to C.

lidated Ind AS Fi ial for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

Term loan from banks :

()]

IDFC First Bank Limited - Term Loan (Secured)

The Company has taken secured term loan facility for 6,500 Lakhs loan from IDFC First Bank Limited. Out of this facility the entity has drawn 4,940 lakhs till June 30, 2023
(March 31, 2023: 4,016.20). The rate of interest varies between 7.90% p.a. to 10.00% p.a.

i
a)

b)
)
d)
€)
i)
1ii)
iv)

ii)

N -

® AR W

iii)

iv)

ii)

it}

Primary and collateral security:

Exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage on the land and building situated at Khasra Nos. 335/2, Khasra Nos. 335/18 and Khasra Nos. 337 and 1511/339 at
village bahapur. New Delhi (Proiect) both present and future.

Exclusive charge on the current assets and receivables of the project (including insurance claim) both present and future,

Exclusive charge on the movable assets of the Project, both present and future.

Pledge of 30% shares of Pharmax Corporation Limited held by Max Estate Limited

Corporate guarantee of Max Estate Ltd. And Max Ventures and Industries Limited

Interest Rate - Spread plus IDFC First Bank MCLR

Tenure - for principal repayment Bullet payment on or before 31.12.2025 and interest to be serviced on a monthly basis.

DSRA - 3 months interest to be created

ICICE Bank Limited - Term Loan (Secured)
Term loan facility from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 10,095.80 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 10,218.74 lakhs) is secured by way of exclusive charge of

mortgage/hypothecation/assignment/security interest/charge/pledge upon following (both present and future) on:

Pari-passu charge over project developed on Max House Okhla Project;

All present and future tangible moveable assets, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixture and all other
moveable fixed assets in relation to the property

All present and future scheduled receivables to the extent received by the borrower

The escrow t alongwith all ies credited / deposited therein

The Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA)

Corporate guarantee from Pharmax Corporation Limited
The security as required by the lender shall be created and perfected in form and manner satisfactory to the lenders and shared on pari passu basis between the lenders

Post creation of security, the Project shall provide a security cover of 1.50 times during the entire tenure of the Facility on the outstanding loan amount of Facility

The rate of interest varies between 7.90% p.a. to 10.00% p.a. and repaybale during January 2021 - December 2029 and October 2022 - October 2033 amounting to Rs.
45 crores and Rs. 68 crores respectively

Axis Bank Limited (Secured)
The Company has taken refinance secured term loan facility for 24,000 Lakhs loan from Axis Bank Limited. Out of this facility the company has drawn Rs. 23,884.36

lakhs till June 30, 2023 (March 31, 2023: Nil). The rate of interest varies between 9% p.a. to 10.50% p.a. It will be repaid in a single bullet installment during

December 2025

Primary and collateral security:

Exclusive charge on by way of equitable mortgage on project land of 2.6 acre land and building with complete available leasable area of 7 lacs sqft in Max square project,
being developed in Sector 129, Noida

First charge by way of assignment/hypothecation over all present and future current assets including lease rental reccivables, parking rentals, CAM income, security
deposit, sales receivables, any other income generated pertaining to the project

First charge on DSRA, Escrow account maintained with IBL pertaining to rental receivables of the project, wherever maintained, present & future.
30% share pledge of Borrower

Minimum security cover to be 1.5 times based on market values of the property to be maintained throughout tenure of the facility

Corporate guarantee of Max Estates Limited and Max Ventures Industries Limited

DSRA - 3 months interest to be created

Borrower to open Escrow account with IBL

Tenure of loan : 60 months from the date of first

disbursement

Repayment terms:-

Loan will be payable in bullet installment at the end of 60th month from the date of first disbursement

Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Secured)
The Company has taken secured lean loan facility for Rs.15,000.00 Lakhs loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limited. The balance outstanding as at June 30, 2023 is

14,852,67 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 14,839.09 lakhs)The rate of interest varies between 7.90% p.a. to 10.00% p.a.
I) Primary and collateral security:

a) Exclusive charge on by way of equitable mortgage on project land admeasuring 10 acres owned by the borrower situated al Sector 128, Noida for total debt facility
amount of wp to Rs. 150 cr (1st Pari- passu to be shared with incoming lender.

b) Corporate Guarantee of Max Estates Limited.

¢) First charge on DSRA with Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund.

d) Debt service reserve account (DSRA) - 3 months interest to be created

ii) Repayment terms:-

The Company has taken secured term loan facility for Rs. 24,900 Lakhs loan from HDFC Bank Limited at an effective weighted average rate of 7.91% (March 31,
2023: Rs. 24,900 Lakhs from HDFC Bank Limited at an effective weighted average rate of 8.14%). Out of this facility, the Company has drawn Rs. 24,444.27 Lakhs
(March 31, 2023: Rs. 24,603.24) Lakhs from HDFC Bank Limited) till June 30, 2023 repayable in 204 installments commencing from 1 month from the first
drawdown date from HDFC Bank Ltd & Bajaj Hosuing Finance Ltd.

The security of the loan is as follows-

An exclusive charge by way of mortgage / hypothecation / assig t / security i t / charge / pledge upon following (both present and future) on:

The escrow account opened before the first drawdown along with all monies to be received from the lessee, present and future, pertaining to the property, credited /
deposited therein.

The Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) equivalent to 3 months peak debt servicing (interest and principal) to be maintained throughout the tenor of the Facilities.
Debt Service Coverage Ratio shall be created upfront & by way of Fixed Deposit lien marked to the lenders.

Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.3x to be maintained, to be tested on 31st March and 30th September every vear.

The Company has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in the terms of term loan. The Company has not defaulted on any loans pavable,
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Notes to C.

lidated Ind AS Fi ial S for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

vi)

vii)

Vehicle loan (secured) :
Vehicle loans amounting to Rs. 52.24 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 47.30 lakhs ) are secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicles. The loans are repayable in

3 to 5 years. The rate of interest varies between 7.90% p.a. to 10.00% p.a.

Others:

i) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (Unsecured)
Terms of series A-CCD
Unsecured compulsorily convertible deb es having a face value of Rs. 10 each.

Interest - Interest at the rate of 20% per annum, pounded 1ly, pay as follows =

Surplus cash flow will be used to pay all accrued but unpaid interest on Series B CCD, calculated from the Closing Date till March 31 of the relevant financial year
Balance surplus cash flow shall be utilised to pay all accrued but unpaid interest on the Series A CCDs

Conversion - ically and datorily be converted into Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on Conversion Date

Conversion date - carlier of, (a) the date when Series B CCDs are being converted; or (b) the date on which the Series A CCDs are required by Law to be mandatorily

converted

1.1

Terms of Series B - CCD

Unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures having a face value of Rs. 10 each.
Interest - Interest at the rate of 20% per annum, pounded Ily, payable as follows -

No interest shall be payable unless the Company has surplus cash flows in the financial year

Surplus cash flow will be used to pay all accrued but unpaid interest on Series B CCD, calculated from the Closing Date till March 31 of the relevant financial year
Conversion - tically and datorily be converted into Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on Conversion Date

Conversion date - carlier of, (a) at any time after three years from the Closing Date; or (b) date of full exit by New York Life Insurance Corporation from the

Company; or (c) the date on which the Series B CCDs are required by Law to be mandatorily converted

Terms of Series C - CCD

Unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures having a face value of Rs. 10 each.

Interest - Interest at the rate of 20% per annum, compounded annually

Conversion - ically and datorily be converted into Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on Conversion Date

Conversion date - earlier of, (a) the date when Series D CCDs are being converted; or (b) the date on which the Series C CCDs are required by Law to be mandatorily
converted

Terms of Series D - CCD

Unsecured pulsorily convertible deb es having a face value of Rs. 10 each.

Interest - Interest at the rate of 20% per annum, compounded annually.

Conversion - ically and datorily be converted into Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on Conversion Date

Conversion date - earlier of, (a) at any time after six years from the October 7, 2022; or (b) date of full exit by New York Life Insurance Corporation from the
Company; or (¢) the date on which the Series D CCDs are required by Law to be mandatorily converted
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Notes to C lidated Ind AS Fi ial § for the three months period ended June 30, 2023
(s, in Lakhs)
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31. 2023
14.  Other non current financial liabilities

15,

16.

17,

Security deposits

Interest accrued on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

Deferred finance income

Long term provision
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 36)

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets
(i) Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

Other items giving rise to temporary differences

Impact of fair valuation of investments
Gross deferred tax liabilities (a)

Deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis

Other items giving rise to temporary differences

Unabosorbed depreciation/losses
Gross deferred tax assets (b)
Deferred tax (liabilities)/asset (net)
Disclosed as

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax asset

() Current financial liabilities

Current maturity of long term borrowings

From Bank
Short term borrowings*

3,883.18 3,315.14
2,231.09 1,192.36
38.66 29.35
6,152,93 4536,85
187.26 169.33
187.26 169.33
(265.71) (22.84)
(1,127.81) (1,071.48)
(45.69) (15.28)
{1,439.21) {1.109.60)
80.02 73.36
1,833.88 1,781.45
1.047.40 169.83
2,961.30 2,024.64
1.522.09 915.04
(519.44) (1,083.41)
2,041.53 1,998.45
1,522.09 915.04
1,130.61 1,098.67
- 6259.37
__1,130,61 7.358.04

*Short term borrowings includes loan taken in one of the step subsidiary company, which is expected to be repaid during the current financial year from the proceeds of the residential project
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18.

19,

20.

(i) Trade pavables

As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 41.00 501.79
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises # 2,498.15 2201.72
2.539.15 2.703,51
# Trade payables include due to related parties. Refer note 41 (b) for amount due to related parties.
Terms and conditions of the above:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0 - 180 day terms
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
June 30,2023 Not Due| Less than 1 vear| 1-2 Years|2-3 Years More than 3 vears Total
MSME 41.00 - - - - 41.00
Others 633.24 1,864.91 - - - 2,498.15
|Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total 674.24 1,864.91 - - - 2.539.15|
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
March 31, 2023 Not Due| Less than 1 year| 1-2 Years|2-3 Years, More than 3 vears Total
MSME 1.15 500.64 - - - 501.79
Others 584.49 1,617.23 - - - 2,201.72
Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total 585.64 2,117.87 - - - 2.703.5%

* Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
As per the Act, the Group is required to identify the Micro and small suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms agreed with such
suppliers. Based on the information available with the Group, none of the creditors have confirmed the applicability of act on them. Hence, the liability of the interest and disclosure are not

required to be disclosed in the fi ial

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
(iii) Other current financial liabilities
Security deposits 20.00 123.46
Capital creditors 2,943.73 761.15
Interest accrued on borowings 402.30 608.80
Deferred liabilities 152.63 161.83
3.518.66 1.655.24
Short term provision
Provision for emplovee benefits
- Provision for leave encashment/ compensated absences 303.25 249.73
- Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 1.90 1.90
30515 25163
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for income tax 24.83 -
2483 -
Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 11,233.01 18.75
Deferred finance income - 28.84
Other current liabilities 8.40 757
Statutory dues 880,04 712.25

12.121.45 767.41
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Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

21.

22.

23.

24,

Revenue from operations

For the three months
period ended

For the three months
period ended

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Revenue from operations
Revenue from sale of constructed properties, lease income and facility management 1.827.63 2.524.66
Total 1,827.63 2,524.66
Revenue from services
Income from shared services {refer note 41(a)} - 207.00
Total 1.827.63 2,731.66

Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied upon completion of the services/sale of properties and payment is generally due within 30 to 180 days from such

date.

Other income

Interest income on

- on fixed deposits

- on security deposit*

Gain on mutual fund investments

Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back

Miscellaneous income

* on financial assets at amortised cost

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others

Inventories at beginning of period

Less: adjustment on account of sale of stake in Max Speciality Films Limited
Less: inventory at the end of period

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others
Disclosed under repair and maintenance

Change in inventories of constructed properties

a) Inventories at the end of the period
Work in progress-

Real Estate
Finished goods

b) Inventories at the beginning of the period
Work in progress-

Real Estate
Finished goods

Net decrease in inventories of constructed properties (b-a)

101.93 276.30
25.42 33.11
65.37 36.79

276.46 226.13
13.15 -
35.14 51.19

517.47 623.52
28.73 40.73

- (13.34)

27.06 27.39

1.67 -

(1.67) -
186.75 186.75
- 743.57
_186.75 930.32
186.75 186.75
- 1,138.84
186.75 1.325.59
- 395.27

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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25.

26.

27.

28.

Employee benefits expense

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the three months
period ended

For the three months
period ended

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 213.00 401.57
Contribution to provident and other funds 19.56 2248
Employee stock option scheme* 1592 14.16
Gratuity expense (refer note 36) 7.32 5.37
Staff welfare expenses 11.14 5.12
266.94 448.70
*net of amount capitalised in Investment Property under development Rs.1.54 lakhs (June 30, 2022: Rs. 2.06)
Finance costs
Interest on term loan 1,751.13 966.11
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 4b) 101.99 77.79
Interest on others 0.11 22.39
Bank charges 642 0.33
1,859.65 1,066.62
Less: Finance cost capitalised (refer note 3A) (1,422.00) (712.82)
437.65 ___353.80
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of tangible assets and investment property (refer note 3 and 3A) 31093 298.55
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4b) 46.78 88.07
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4) 11.02 1.04
368.73 387.66
Other expenses
Rent 534 1.17
Insurance expenses 37.89 20.51
Rates and taxes 210.50 101.88
Repairs and maintenance:
Building 1.13 11.12
Others 72.53 83.51
Printing and stationery 1.36 1.07
Travelling and conveyance 537 18.19
Communication costs 3.84 2.66
Legal and professional 18.86 206.82
Directors' sitting fees {refer note no 40(a)} 16.50 30.35
Advertisement and sales promotion 429.42 22.11
Auditorium Running 5.59 10.27
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure (refer note no 41) 11.40 24 61
Shared service charges {refer note no 40(a)} - 7.50
Facility management 368.32 411.95
Miscellaneous expenses 58.47 6591
124652 1019.63
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Notes to C. lidated Ind AS Fi ial § for the three months period ended June 30, 2023
29 The subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries follow fi ial year as ing year. The below is the summary of principal activities of these entities and proportion of ownership of the
Holding Company:
Name of the subsidiary Principal activities Country of incorporation Proportion of ownership as at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023

Subsidiary o

Max Estates 128 Limited Construction and develop of residential India 100% 100%
properties

Max Estate Gurgaon Limited Construction and devel of residential India 100% 100%
properties

Acreage Builders Private Limited* - Construction and development of commercial India 51%* 100%
properties

Max I. Limited Making investments in various companies and India 100% 100%
primarily engaged in growing and nurturing these
business investments

Max Asset Services Limited Facility management services for commerical real India 100% 100%
estate

Max Square Limited Construction and development of residential and India 51% 51%
commercial properties

Pharmax Corporation Limited Construction and development of residential and India 100% 100%
commercial properties

Max Towers Private Limited Construction and development of residential and India 100% 100%

ial properties

*During the period, one Group has sold 49% of its investment in its wholly owned subsidiary (Acreage Builders Private Limited) to New York Life Insurance Company for cash
consideration amounting to Rs. 14490.55 lakhs. This transaction has not resulted in any gain or loss to the Group.
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30

31

32

Income taxes

{Rs. in Lakhs)

For the three months For the three months
period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
(a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises :
Current Income Tax
Current income tax charge 61.04 20.00
Deferred Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (644.11) 95.30
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss for continuing operations (583.07) 115.30
Components of Other comprehensive income (OCI) (Retained earnings)
Re-measurement (gains)/ losses on defined benefit plans (refer note: 36.0 ) 13.27 2.98
Income tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year {4.80) (0.75)
Income tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year 8.47 2.23
Earnings per share (EPS)
For the three months For the three months
period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Profit after tax (Rs. in Lakhs) (3,837.03) 634.80
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 14,70.90.820 14,69.51,529
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (2.61) 0.43
Profit after tax for diluted EPS (Rs. in Lakhs) * 645.39
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for dilutive eamnings per share (Nos) * 14.76.89.374
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (2.61) 0.43

*since there is losses during the period, there is anti dilution- hence diluted eaming per share is not separately reported

Note: Share pending issuance has been included for the computation of earning per share as per guidance of Ind AS 33- Earnings per share
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33

Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the period ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 are :

Statement of profit and loss :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the three months  For the three months

period ended period ended

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Current income tax :
Current tax 61.04 20.00
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years - -
Deferred tax :
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (644.11) 95.30
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (583.07) 115.30
Total (583.07) 115.30
OCI section :
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (4.80) (0.75)
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans discontinued operations - -
Income tax effect on cost of hedging reserve - -
Tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year (4.80) (0.75)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the period ended June 30, 2023 and

period ended March 31, 2023:

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations (4,420.10) 750.10
Accounting profit before income tax (4,420.10) 750.10
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% ( June 30, 2022: 25.17%) (1,112.54) 188.80
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Tax on loss of capital not recognised 1,118.84 -
Tax effect of recognized/unrecognized on entities with carry forward losses (568.62) (53.50)
Others (20.75) {20.00)
At the effective income tax rate (583.07) 115.30
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (583.07) 115.30
Total tax expense (583.07) 115.30
Deferred tax relates to the following:
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (265.71) (22.84)
Other items giving rise to temporary differences (1,127.81) (1,071.48)
Impact on fair valuation of investments (45.69) (15.28)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (a) (1,439.21) (1,109.60)
Deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 80.02 73.36
Other items giving rise to temporary differences* 1,833.88 1,781.45
Unabosorbed depreciation/losses 1,047.40 169.83
Gross deferred tax assets (b) 2,961.30 2,024.64
Deferred tax (liabilities)/asset (net) 1,522.09 915.04
*primarily includes tax impact on convertible instrument
Disclosed as:
Deferred tax liabilities (519.44) (1,083.41)
Deferred tax asset 2.041.53 1,998 45
1,522.09 915.04
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net):
Particulars June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Opening balance at the beginning of year/period 915.04 (347.36)
Add:Merger effect - (1,596.31)
Tax on equity component of CCD - 1,165.94
Capitalised during the year (32.26) -
Tax expense/(income) during the year/period recognised in statement of profit and loss 644.11 1,692.76
Tax expense/(income) during the year/period recognised in OCI (4.80) 0.01
Net balance 1,522.09 915.04
Closing balance at the end of year/period (1,522.09) 915.04

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax ass
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.’,
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a. Commitments and contingencies
Contingent liabilities not provided for
(Rs. in Lakhs)
S. No. |(Particulars As at As at
June 30,2023 March 31, 2023
i Uttarakhand VAT case 21.24 21.24
ii Bank guarantee {Refer note (a}} 5,000.00 5.000.00
Note: .
a. The Group has given a bank guarantee of Rs. 5,000 lakhs issued by HDFC Bank Limited (March 31, 2023: Rs. 5,000 lakhs issued by

ICICI Bank Limited) in favour of Piramal Enterperises for bid submitted for Delhi One project.Max Estates Limited, had submitted its
resolution plan for resolution of Boulevard Projects Private Limited. The Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi has approved the said Resolution
Plan,for the development of commercial plot admeasuring 34,697 sq mtrs, located in NOIDA under the project name ‘Delhi One’. This
acquisition has potential to add ~3 million sq. ft. of additional development footprint to the portfolio of Max Estates Limited. The
implementation of the Resolution Plan is subject to receipt of requisite approvals from regulatory and statutory authorities.

Capital and other commitments

a. Capital commitment (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at

June 30,2023 March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 24,065.65 28,953.51
Less: Capital advances (refer note 7) (6.951.72) (5.456.78)
Net capital commitment for acquisition of capital assets 17,113.93 23,496.73

b. Other commitment
*Capital commitment includes an amount of INR 17,600 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 17,600) , being the remaining amount payable for purchase of 2

land parcels situated in Sector 129, Noida (U.P.), India (“Land Parcels”), which were auctioned by Axis Bank Limited. The acquisition is subject
to customary statutory approvals. The cost of acquisition of aforesaid Land Parcels is ~ INR 22,000 lakhs. The Company had paid the amount of
INR 4,444 lakhs till June 30, 2023 (March 31, 2023: 4,400), which is disclosed under the head capital advances in the consolidated financial
statements and remaining has been paid in period September 2023 quarter.

The Company had submitted its resolution plan for resolution of Boulevard Projects Private Limited. The Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi has
approved the said Resolution Plan, for the development of commercial plot admeasuring 34,697 sq mtrs, located in NOIDA under the project
name ‘Delhi One’. This acquisition has potential to add ~3 million sq. ft. of additional development footprint to the portfolio of Max Estates
Limited. The implementation of the Resolution Plan was subjected to receipt of requisite approvals from regulatory and statutory authorities.

However, certain fundamental reliefs imperative for implementing the plan are being sought from NOIDA for which the Company has filed an
appeal in NCLAT on 11 April 2023.

Max Estates 128 Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company had launched its first luxury residential project, Estate 128, located
at Sector 128 and the same is registered with UP RERA number as UPRERAPRJ446459. The project has achieved pre-formal launch sales of
over INR 1,800 crores approximately Estate 128 is built across 10 acres, with 3 high rise towers having 201 units anchored in the organisation’s
LiveWell philosophy. The Company has also received advances amounting from the customer amounting to Rs. 11,732.71 lakhs during the
quarter.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. However, effective
date and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been notified/issued. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the Code and
will recognize the impact, if any, based on its effective date.
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35 Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under Gratuity Plan, every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Description of risk exposures
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as follows:

i) Salary I Actual salary i will increase the Plan’s liability. I in salary i rate iption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

i) Discount Rate : Reduction in di rate in sub luations can i the plan’s liability.

iii) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities. N
iv) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the di rate d at the last val date can impact

the liability

The following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans :

a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligati 30, 20’ rch 31, 2023 ne 30, 2022+
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year/period 171.23 73.69 73.69
Merger Agiustment - 63.50 63.50

Less - adjustment on account of stake sale in Max Speciality Films Limited (refer note 28}
Interest costs 3.60 1.98 0.50
Current service cost 12.39 38.58 9.65
Benefit paid - (6.54) (1.64)
Remeasurement of (gain)/loss in other comprehensive income 2.22 0.02 0.01
Defined benefit obligation at year end/period 189.44 171.23 145.71
b} Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the vear/period - = -
Fair value of plan assets at vear/period end 3 - =
¢) Net defined benefit (liabilitv)/ asset recognized in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation (189.44) [171.23) {145.71)
A t ized in bal sheet - (liabilitv)/ asset {189.44) (171,23} _(145.71)
Current (2.95) (1.90) {1.90)
Non current (186 47} {169 33} {143 81}
(189.42) {171.23) (145.71)
*figures for june are computed on a proportionated basis.
d) Other comprehensive income - 0,02 0,01
¢) Net defined benefit { ized in the of profit and loss for the vear/period)
Current service cost 12.39 15.26 3.81
Interest cost on benefit obligation 3.60 21.64 5.41
Expected return on plan assets - 0.74 0.18
Capitalised as investment property / cost of goods sold - 292 0.73
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 1599 40.56 10.13

f) Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation

Assumption particulars As At As At
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.20% 7.26%
Future Salarv Increases 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality Rate {% of IALM 12-14) 100.00% 100.00%

g} Q itati itivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the period/year
Discount rate

Increase by 0.50% (12.40) 8.71)
Decrease by 0.50% 13.62 9.57
Salary growth rate

Increase by 0.50% 9.92 7.00
Decrease by 0.50% (8.23) (6.44)

h} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (valued on undi: d basis)

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 6.60 2.29
Between 2 and 5 years 17.03 13.40
Beyond 5 Years 165.68 155.54
Total expected payments 189.31 171.23

1} The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7- 21 years (March 31, 2023: 7 - 21 years)

i) The Group expects to contribute Rs Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil) to the planned assets during the next financial year.

k) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary idered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market. The above information is as certified by the actuary.

I} Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the esti d term of the oblj

m) The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period.

n

=

Risk Exposure

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus, the Group is exposed to various risks in providing the
above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result
in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short=term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or
holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in
future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Demographic Risk: The Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of ag
to the assumption.
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During the pervious year, Max Estates Gurgaon Limited(MEGL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Max Estates Limited, has entered into a Joint Development Agreement
(JDA) for the development of land parcels. MEGL has paid to the land owners a sum of Rs. 9395 lakhs (March 31, 2023- Rs. 4917 Lakhs) as an interest free refundable
security as per JDA. The security deposit is refundable to the company as and when Revenue accrues in the hands of the land owners.

Employee Stock Option Plan

Employee Stock Option Plan — 2016 (“the 2016 Plan”):

The Holding Company, Max Ventures and Industries Limited has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan - 2016 which have been approved by the Board in the
meeting held on Sth August 2016 and by shareholders of Max Ventures and Industries Limited in its annual general meeting held on September 27, 2016.

The details of activity under the scheme are summarized below:

Particulars

Outstanding at the start of the year

Add- Adjustment on account of merger (refer note 37)
Outstanding at the start of the year (post merger effect)
Options granted during the period/year

Forfeited during the period/year

Exercised during the period/year*

Outstanding at the period/year end

Exercigable at the period/year end

June 30, 2023 | March 31,2023 |
Number of options| /i Number of options i v
exercige price (Rs.) ige pri

8.93.976 30.59 - -
- - 8,29,156 17.83
8,93,976 30.59 829,156 17.83
96,279 95.33 297,538 53.87
1,50,282] 26.64 75,740 12.90
- 156,978 15.84
839,973 36.91 893,976 30.59
287,672 14.75 88,962 13.99

*30918 equity shares which were exercised in previous year has been alloted in current period
For options exercised during the period, the weighted average share price at the exercise date was NIL per share. (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 15.84)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:
|

Date of grant June 30,2023 March 31,2023 ]
Number of options| Weighted average] Number of options| Wei:hted nvera:el
remaining life i remaining life in veal
04-06-2020 (Grant Type 1T} 405127 0.92 4.87.528 117
02-07-2021 (Grant Type IV} 78,733 1.92 96,231 217
02-07-2021 (Grant Type V) - 192 12,679, 2.17
25-07-2022 (Grant Type VI) 247,595 307 2.85.299] 3.32)
08-11-2022 (Grant Tvpe VII} 12,239 3.36) 12239 3.61
19-05-2023 (Grant Type VIII) 96,279 336 - -

The Company has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan - 2016 which have been approved by the Board in the meeting held on 9th August 2016 and by shareholders
of the Company in its annual general meeting held on September 27, 2016 based on similar terms and conditions to the relevant ESOP plan of MFSL. During the period
ended June 30, 2023, NIL (March 31, 2023 # - 1,56,978) number of stock options were exercised by the aforesaid option holders. The 2016 Plan provides for grant of
stock options aggregating not more than 5% of number of issued equity shares of the Company to eligible employees of the Company. Further, the Company extended the
ESOP plan to directors and employees of its subsidiaries by obtaining approval of the shareholders in its armual general meeting held on September 24, 2019. The 2016
Plan is administered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of Directors.

The 2016 Plan gives an option to the employee to purchase the share at a price determined by Nomination and Remuneration committee (NRC) subject to minimum par
value of shares (Rs. 10/-). The Company has valued Employee Stock Option outstanding as at year end presuming all the employees will exercise their option in favor of

equity settlement based on trend.
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38  Fair value of financial instruments

The comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories that are not measured at fair value:

Category

Financial asset at amortized cost

Non-Current
Financial assets (refer note no 5(iv)
Trade Receivable (refer not no S(Gi)
Other bank balance (refer not no 5(iii)

Current
Other-current financial assets (refer note no (v))
Bank balances (refer not no 9(ivy)
Trade receivables (refer not no 9(iiN
Cash & cash cquivalents (refer not no 9(iiiy

Financial asset measured at fair value
Non-Current
Investments (refer note no 5(i))
Current
Current investments (refer note no 9(i))

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Non-Current
Non-Current borrowings (refer note 13)
Lease liabilities (refer note 4b)
Other non~current financial liabilities (refer note 14)
Current
Current borrowings (refer note 18)
Other current financial habilities (refer note 18)
Trade pavables (refer note 18)
Lease liabilities (refer note 4b)

| June 30, 2033

9,372.59
894.33
1,106.31

3.398.68
2.832.26
1.062.16
10,316.27

930.01

22,302.78

85,629.03
3.431.82
6.152.93

1,130.61
3.518.66
2,539.15

244.39

Carrying value

| Muarch 31,2023 |

6,858.87
968.61
100135

4.665.46
2,374.31

578.06
1.762.70

5.363.17

10,396.36

75.081.26
3,488.11
4,536.85

7,358.04
1,655.24
2,703.51

236.66

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Fair value

| Jumsd02923_ ] Mamh3laez |
9,372.59 6,858.87
89433 968.61
1,106.31 1,001.35
3,398.68 4,665.46
2,832.26 237431
1,062.16 578.06
10,316.27 1,762.70
930.01 5,363.17
22,302.78 10,596.36
85,629.03 75,081.26
3,431.82 3,488.11
6,152.93 4,536.85
1,130.61 7,358.04
3,518.66 1,655.24
2,539.15 2,703.51
244.39 236.66

The Group management assessed that all current assets and current liabilities carryving value included in the above table are considered to be same as their fair value.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following

methods and assumptions were uscd to estimate the fair values:

Long term borrowings are primarily bearing floating rate of interest with periodic reset of on vear. Managemem has assessed carrying value of these instruments to approximate the fair value

future

The fair value of other non current financial asset and non current financial liabiliti

are d by di

The Group has investment in quoted mutual funds being valued at quoted market price in active markets,

Fair value hierarchv
The Group uses the following hi for and di
Level L: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

the fair value of financial i by

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3. techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

(i) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hicrarchy for financial assets as on June 30,2023

using interest rate of similar instruments. The resulted fair value was not significantly different

(Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
June 30, 2023
Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets (refer note no 5(iv) 9.372.59 - 9,372.59
Other~current financial assets (refer note no 9(v) 339868 - 3,398.68
‘Trade Receivable (refer not no 5(ii)) 894.33 - 894.33
Other bank balance (refer not no 5(iii)) 1.106.31 - 1,106.31
Bank balances {refer not no 9(iv)) 283226 - 2,832.26
Trade receivables (refer not no 9(i) 1.062.16 - 1,062.16
Non-Current investments (refer note no 5(i)) 930.01 - - 930.01
Current dnvestmenty (vefer pole no 911 2730278 2230278 - -
(i) Q e of fair value hy for assets as on March 31, 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets (refer note no 5{iv)) 6.858.87 - - 6,858.87
Other-current financial assets (refer note no (v 4.665.46 - 4,665.46
Trade Receivable (refer not no 5¢ii)) 968.61 - - 968.61
Other bank balance (refer not no 5(iii 160135 - - 1,00135
Bank balances (refer not no 9(iv)) 237431 - - 2,37431
Trade receivables (refer not no 9(ii) 578.06 - - 578.06
Non-Current investments (refer note no 5(y) 5363.17 - - 5363.17
Cirrent investments (refer nols ne S 10496 20 10 596 36 - i
(iiii) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as on June 30, 2023
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
June 30. 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-Current borrowings (refer note 13) 85.629.03 - - 85.629.03
Lease liabilities (refer note 4b) 3.431.82 - - 3,431.82
Other non-current financial liabilitics (refer note 14) 6,152.93 - - 6,152.93
Current borrowings (refer note 18) 1,130.61 - - 1,130.61
Other current financial liabilities (refer note 18) 3.518.66 - - 3,518.66
Trade pavables (refer note 18) 2,539.15 - - 2,539.15
Leags liabilities frefcs nole 4b) 24439 - z 244 39
iv) Q ¢ of fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2023
{Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31. 2023
Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-Current borrowings (refer note 13) Y A - - 75,081.26
Lease liabilities {refer note 4b) HHRHRHRH B - - 3,488.11
Other non-current financial liabilities (refer note 14) HHHRREE HHEHH - - 4,536.85
Current borrowings (refer note 18) W S - - 7,358.04
Other current financial liabilitics (refer note 18) WA SR - - 1,655.24
Trade pavables (refer note 18} I #ES - - 1,655.24
Lease liabilities (refer note 4b} A S - - 2.703.51
Curment ines (refer node 18000 HHupeN RERiaEY = = 22006
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3 Fi ial risk biectives and policies
The Group has instituted an overall risk management programme which also focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial petformarnce. The Group uses
forward covers to hedge foreign currency risk exposures. Financial risk management is carried out by Banking and Forex under policies app: d by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Banking and Forex
department, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co~operation with the various stakeholders. The Board of Directors approves written principles for overall financial risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial i and ivative financial i

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks are managed pro-actively by the Serior Management of the Group, duly supported by various Groups and Committees.

a) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group employees prudent liquidity risk managemem practices which inter alia meats malmalmng sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Given the nature of the g the finance ility in funding by mai under itted credit

lines and this way liquidity risk is mitigated by the availability of funds to cover future commitments. Cash flow forecasts are prepared and the utilized borrowing facilities are monitored on a daily basis and there is adequate focus on
good management practices whereby the collections are managed efficiently. The Group while borrowing funds for large capital project, negotiates the repayment schedule in such a manner that these match with the generation of cash on
such investment, Longer term cash flow forecasts are updated from time to time and reviewed by the Senior management of the Group.

The table below represents the maturity profile of Group's financial liabilities at the end of June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
0-1 Years 15 Years More than § Years Total
Wlune 30,2023
I beanne borrowines 1,130 61 85,629 03 - B6.75%.64
Crake pavable 249815 - - 2A9K.15.
(Other financial liabilities 3,518.66 - - 351066
|March 31, 2023
literest bearing b T8 I5.08] 26 K2 AN9.30 |
Trade oovabic 270351 2.703.51 ]
| Cilier (aocial Habilitics L6254 155,24 |
*Lease liability maturity profile has been disclosed under note 4b
Interest bearing borrowings
Excludes interest cash ontflow as borrowings are on floating rate of interest.
Reconciliation of interest hearine borrowings {Rs. in Lakhs)}
Asat Asat
Schedule no June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
(i) Non-Current borrowings 13 85,613.09 75,065.32
(ii) Short-term borrowings 17¢) - 6,259.37
(iif) Current maturity of leng term borrowings 17(i) 1,130.61 1,098.67
Processin, fees adiusted from borrowinus 15.94 15.94
B0.I80, Aladnin

b) Credit risk
Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade

receivables) , including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial assets.

{ii) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Management evaluate credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Receivable
control management team assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major
customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit i An impai analysis is at each reporting date on p y basis. The ion is based on exch losses historical data and
available facts as on date of jon. Trade ivables comprise a i customer base. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions
and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposit

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investmenis of surplus funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities.
The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counter party's potential failure to make payments. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis.
All balanses with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Group.

) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk. interest rate risk and other price

tisks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payahles The sensmvnv analyscs in the
following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on, the carrying values of gratuity and other p
and the non-financial assets and liabilitics. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial labilities held as of
March 31, 2023, and June 30, 2023,
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40 Related party disclosures

Key management personnel

Names ofrelated parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mittal (Director)

Mr. Sahil Vachani (Managing Director)

Mr. Nitin Kumar Kansal (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Abhishek Mishra (Company Secretary) (w e.f. 28th June, 23)

Other Non- executive/Independent Directors

Mr. Analjit Singh (Director)

Mr. Ka Luk Stanley Tai (Director)

Ms. Gauri Padmanabhan

Mr. Niten Malhan

Mr. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney (upto 31-Jul-2023)
Mr. Rishi Raj (upto 31-Jul-2023)

Mr. Bishawiit Das (upto 31-Jul-2023)

Mr. K. Narsimha Murthy (upto 8-Aug-22)

Mr. Ankit Jain {Company Secretary upto 11-Jan-23)

Entities controlled or jointly controlled by person or entities where person
has significantly influence

Max Ventures Private Limited
Piveta Estates Private Limited
Siva Realty Ventures Private Limited

New Delhi House Services Limited
'Vana Enterprises Limited

Four Season Foundation

Lake View Enterprises

Max Life Insurance Company Limited
New York Life Insurance Company Limited
Siva Enterprises Private Limited

Max India Limited

SKA Diagnostic Private Limited
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited
Riga Foods LLP

Max Financial Services Limited

Max Learning ventures Limited
Routes 2 Roots

Antara Care Homes Limited

Delhi Guest House Private Limited
Topline Electronics Private Limited
RV Legal

Antara Senior Living Limited

Trophy Estates Private Limited
Analjit Singh HUF

Employee benefit Trust

Max Financial Services Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust
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40 (a) Details of transactions with related parties

(Rs. In lakhs)
) . For the period ended For the period ended
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulars June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
1 Reimb of exp (Paid to)
Max Life Insurance Co. Limited 167.66 101.69
New Delhi House Services Ltd. 24.63 20.16
Max Financial Services Ltd 26.84 -
Max India Limited 42.50 2.00
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited - -
Total 261.63 123.85
2 Revenue from rentals and other services Max Learning Ventures Pvt Limited 12.34 11.35
Routes 2 Roots 13.47 6.92
Antara Senior Living Limited 11.45 242
Riga Foods LLP 4.70 3.82
Max Ventures I Holding Pvt Ltd 1.85 -
Max Financial Services Ltd 5.92 22.93
Max India Limited 9.32 28.13
Topline Electronics Pvt Ltd 3.00 10.56
Total 62.05 86.13
3 Repair & Maintenance New Delhi House Services Limited 0.04 3.48
Dethi Guest House Private Limited 3.67 4.83
Total 3.71 8.31
4 Lease payments Delhi Guest House Private Limited 15.00 15.00
SKA Di ics Private Limited 11.06 11.04
Total 26.06 26.04
5 Contribution to Provident Fund Trust Max financial services limited Employees’ Providd - 16.43
Total - 16.43
6 Directors’ sitting fees Analiit Singh 2.00 2.00
D.K Mittal 4.00 8.00
Gauri Pad bt 5.00 5.00
Niten Malhan 4.00 5.00
K.N Murthy - 9.00
Total 15.00 29.00
7 Key ial r ation - short term
employment benefits Sahil Vachani 42.72 40.11
Nitin Kumar Kansal 21.54 20.25
Ankit Jain - 4.37
Abhishek Mishra 5.34 -
Total 69.60 64.73
8 Key gerial ¥ ation - post employment
benefits Sahil Vachani 5.59 2.34
Nitin Kumar Kansal 3.01 1.40
Ankit Jain - 0.26
Abhishek Mishra 0.63 -
Total 9.23 4.00
9 Brokerage income Trophy Estates Private Limited - 1.91
Total - 1.91
10 Sale of Investment in subsidiary p New York Life Insurance Company Limited 14,490.65 -
Total 14,490.65 -
11 Compulsorily convertible debentures (CCD) issugNew York Life Insurance Company Limited - May 3,832.43 -
Total 3,832.43 -
12 Interest paid on CCD - Max Square * New York Life Insurance C Limited 383.49 235.62
Interest paid on CCD - Acreage * New York Life Insurance Company Limited 168.00 -
Total 383.49 235.62
13  |Corporate Social Responsibility Max India Foundation 7.03 -
Total 7.03 -
14 Manag t fee (included in legal and
professional expenses) Analiit Singh 75.00 -
Total 75.00 -

* Accounted in according with guidance on convertible instruement accounting under Ind AS
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40 (b) Balances outstanding at year/period end

for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

(Rs. In lakhs)
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulars Jun:;o:‘; 023 Marc:SS;‘,t 2023
1  |Statutory dues payable Max Fi ial services Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust - 4.95
Total - 4.95
2 |Trade Receivables Max Ventures In: Holding Private Limited 10.13 23.20
Piveta Estates Private Limited 6.29 6.29
New Delhi House Services Limited 2.02 -
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited 0.36 -
Max India Limited 8.08 -
Trophy Estates Private Limited 43.33 43.33
Analjit Singh HUF 9.16 9.16
Mr. Analjit Singh 52.80 52.80
Siva Realty Ventures Pvt Limited - 0.09
Max Skill First Limited - 0.28
Max One Distribution and Services Ltd - 0.03
Max Ventures Private Limited - 3.19
Antara Senior Living Limited 0.82 2.27
Max Fi ial services Limited 228 -
Routes 2 Roots 4.36 2.34
Max Learning Ventures Private Limited 9.93 20.06
Riga Foods LLP 0.83 3.53
Topline Electronics Private Limited 3.54 -
Total 153.93 166.57
3 |Advance to party Max India Foundation - 5.00
SKA Di tic Private Limited - 0.25
Total - 5.25
4 |Other receivables Piveta Estates Private Limited 2.83 2.83
Max Life Insurance Co. Limited 0.61 1.70
Antara Care Homes Limited - 0.69
Antara Senior Living Limited - 0.57
Max Learning Ventures Private Limited - 0.28
Max Ventures Private Limited - 5.46
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited - 0.36
Siva Realty Ventures Pvt Limited - 0.07
Total 3.44 11.96
5 |Trade payables and capital creditors Max Fi ial services Limited - 34.83
Maex India Limited - 60.50
Max Skill First Limited - 0.25
Vana Enterprises Limited - 1.91
Antara Senior Living Limited - 2.08
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited 0.08 -
Max Learning Ventures Pvt Limited 2.27
New Delhi House Services Limited 0.55 -
Gauri Pad bl - 1.80
Riga Foods LLP - 0.64
iFeElEi Guest House Private Limited 12.67 -
Routes 2 Roots - 0.90
Total 13.30 105.18
6 |Security deposit made Max Life Insurance Co. Limited 244.30 244.30
Delhi Guest House Limited 15.00 15.00
SKA Diagnostic Private Limited 9.37 9.37
Total 268.67 268.67
7 |Security deposit received Topline Electronics Pvt Ltd 10.56 10.56
Antara Senior Living Limited 7.87 7.87
Route to routes 5.40 5.40
Max Learning Ventures Private Limited 47.74 23.87
Vana Vastra Pvt Limited - 18.11
Max Financial Services Limited 5.03 5.03
Max India Limited 7.87 7.87
Max Ventures In Holding Private Limited 1.58 1.58
Total 86.05 80.29
8 |Compulsorily convertible deb es (CCD) *  |New York Life Insurance Company Limited (Max Square) 5,390.00 5,390.00
New York Life Insurance Company Limited (Acreage) 3,832.43 -
Total 9,222.43 5,390.00
9 |Imterest Accrued on CCD * New York Life Insurance Company Limited {(Max Stquare) 2,683.96 2,300.47
New York Life Insurance Company Limited (Acreage) 168.00 -
Total 2,851.96 2,300.47

* Accounted in according with guidance on convertible instruement accounting under Ind AS
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41 Disclosure pursuant to amendment to Ind AS 7 (Statement of Cash flows)

ts for the three months period ended June 30, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Non-cash transactions Closing balance
April 1, 2023 Proceeds Repayment Processing cost New leases Other June 30, 2023

Term loans from banks 67,301.75 9,959.38 (245.44) - - - 77,015.69
Compulsory convertible Debentures 7,749.32 3,83243 - - 299939 8,582.36
Vehicle loans 30.19 10.28 (9.49) - - - 30.98
Short term borrowings 7358.04 - (6,227.43) - - - 1,130.61
Current lease liabilities 236.66 - - - - 7.73 244.39
Non-current lease liabilities 3,488.11 - {150.54) - - 94.26 3.431.82
Total liabilities from financing activities 86,164.07 13,802.09 (6,632.91) - - 3,101.38 90,435.85

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Opening bal Cash flows Non-cash transactions Closing balance
April 1, 2022 Proceeds Repavment Processing cost New leases Other June 30, 2022

Term loans from banks 24.873.00 7.630.35 (3.650.00) - 28,853.35
Compulsory convertible Debentures 3430.96 1,720.20 - (857.00) 4.294.16
Vehicle loans 3134 - (7.41) 23.93
Short term borrowings 3176.68 - {509.00) {2,667.68) -
Current lease liabilities - - 236.66 236.66
Non-~current lease liabilities* - - (155.09) 2,655.09 2.500.00
Total liabilities from financing activities 31,511.98 9,350.55 (4,321.50) - - {632.93) 35,908.10

*includes adjustment due to merger
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42 Expenditure on corporate social responsibility activities :
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been framed by the Group. The areas for CSR
activities are promoting preventive health care, promoting education, promoting gender equality and empowering women, ensuring environment
sustainability and protection of flora and fauna, training to promote rural sports and rural development projects.

Amount required to be spent during the year Rs. 11.40 lakhs (June 30, 2022: Rs. 24.61 lakhs)

(a)

(b)

(c)

There are no ongoing projects for the period ended June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023.

43 Segment reporting

Details of CSR expenditure*

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
Amount spent during the year

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

ii) On purposes other than (i) above

*There are no ongoing projects as at June 30, 2023

Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i) Contribution to public trust
ii) Contribution to charitable trust
iii) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project
- Other than ongoing project

Note for other than ongoing project:

Opening balance
With Company
In separate CSR unspent account
Amount deposited in specified fund of Schedule VII within 6 months
Amount required to be spent during the period
Amount spent during the period
From Company’s bank A/c
From separate CSR unspent a/c

Closing balance
With Company
In separate CSR unspent account

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the three months | For the three months
period ended period ended
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
439 397
439 397
11.00 24.61

In case of Section 135(5) (Other than ongoing
project)

The Group is a one segment company in the business of real estate’s development. All its operations are located in India , accordingly, the management
views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’. All assets
located and revenue is generated in India for all period presented. There are no customer from whom revenue is moere than 10% of the total external
revenue of the group.
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Ind AS Fi
44 Materiat partly owned subsidiaries

All the subsidiaries are incorporated in India. The financial information of subsidiaries that have material non~controlling interests as at June 30, 2023 is provided below:

a) Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

[ Acreans Builders Private Limited* Max Square Limited
Particulars | June 30, 2023 | March 31,2023 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Proportion of equitv interest held by non-controlling interests 49.00% - 49.00% | 49.00%
b) Information regarding trolling inferest {Ba. n Lakhs)
Acreage Builders Private Limited* Max Square Limited Total
Particulars June 30,2023 March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30,2023  March 31, 2023
A balances of lling interest 14,856.90 - 5537.22 4,266.94 20,394.12 4,266.94
Total Compirehensive income allocated to non-controlling interest 10191 - (58.12] 154.791 (58.311 (54.79%
The summarised financial information of the subsidiaries is provided below. This information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.
Summarised statement of profit and loss for the year ended June 30, 2023 and March 31,2023; {Ra. in Lakhs}
Acreage Builders Private Limited* Max Square Limited Total
|Plrﬁcuhn June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30,2023 | March 31,2023
Revenue (including other incomes) - - - - - -
Total expenses 0.39 - 118.61 111.81 119.00 111.81
Depreciation and amortization expense - - - - - -
Profit before tax .39 - (118.61) (111.81) (119.00) (111.81)
Less: Tax expense - - - -
Profit for the year (0.39) - (118.61) 1181y (119.00) (111.81)
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income/loss - - . - - -
‘Total comprehensive income ©.3%) - (118.61) (111.81) (119.00) (111.81)
Aftributable to non-controlling interests {0.19)/ - (58.12) (54.79) (58.31), (54.79)
Dividends graid to non-controlling interests - - - - -
Summarised balance sheet as at June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Acreage Builders Private Limited* Max Square Limited Total
Particulars June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30,2023 | March 31,2023
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 3,170.59 - 1,263.95 1,439.18 4,434.54 1,439.18
[Nen-current assets 26,095.13 - 53.447.31 47,523.61 79,542.44 47,523.61
Current liabilities, including tax payable 1,031.94 - 1,515.93 807.67 2,551.86 807.67
[Non~current liabilities, including deferred tax liabilities 7,112.68 - 39.034.45 33,890.74 46,147.13 33,850.74
Total equity 21,120.67 - 14,156.97 14,264.40 35.277.64 14,264.40
Attributable to: -
Equity holders of parent 6,263.77 - 8,619.75 9,997.46 14,883.52 9,997.46
|Non—mnlmllinn interest 14.856.90 - 5,537.22 4.266.94 20.394.12 4.266.94
«cash flow i ion as at June 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023
Acreage Builders Private Limited* Max Square Limited
Particulars June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Operating (234.80) - (158.05), (2.286.22) 392. (2.286.22)
Investing (3,051.25) - (1.862.70) (11,962.75) (4,913.95) (11.962.75)
Financing 3,350.39 - 1,837.30 1,036.76 5,187.69 1,036.76
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 64.34 - (183.45) i13212.21) (119113 {13.212.21}%

*previous period figures are not presented since in previous vear, it was wholly owned subsidiary
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45

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Group, securities premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is that it maintain an
efficient capital structure and maximize the sharcholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, The Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 30% to 60%.
The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, other

bank balances.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
June 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
Borrowings 86,759.64 82,439.30
Other financial liabilities 9,671.59 6,192.09
Trade payables 2,539.15 2,703.51
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 10,316.27 1,762.70
Other bank balances 3,938.57 3,375.66
Net debt 84,715.54 86,196.54
Equity share capitat 14,713.45 -
Other equity 1,02,662.36 1,06,410.14
Non-controlling interest 20,394.12 4,266.94
Total equity 1,37,769.93 1,10,677.08
Total capital and net debt 2,22.485.47 1,96.873.62
Gearing ratio 38.08% 43.78%

o
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Additional information pursuant to paragraph 2 of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 - 'General instructions for the ion of lidated Ind AS Financial "

As at and for the period ended June 30, 2023:

Name of the entity in the Group Net Assets i.e. total assets minus Share in profit/(Joss) Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
ies inco I
As % of (Rs. in Lakhs) As % of {(Rs. in Lakhs) As % of {Rs. in Lakhs), As % of (Rs. in Lakhs)|
consolidated net consolidated consolidated consolidated total
assets profit/(less) other comprehensive
comprehensive income
Parent
o Estsfes Limited 0.40% 1.24.543.93 [FRAL ] 1140949 192.95% 1211 130 12%1 L153.10 )
|_5||b.lld].m
1.50% 206973 L26% (48.27) 0.00% - 1.26% (48271
9, 14.15697 3.09% (L1861 0.00% = Aliee 1 (18611
L 1A% 159416 0.56% (21 44) 00004 = 0.56% {2l a4
11.31%:0 (180832} 114.46% (439177 (42 95%) {304} 114 Ki% (4,398 40
T45% 10,261 03 1.91% (3495} .00 - 091% (34.95)
.34% 46774 9.61% {368 601} 0.00% - 9 63% (368 6}
001% ugs 0.04% (.57 0,000 = 0.04% (L5}
1833% 2112067 001% (039 0.00% = 0.0]1% (0.39) ]

k breidiary L4.80% 20,394 18 (.000% = (LU > L.00% =
Eliminations 139.95%) (55,040.06) (0.20%) 7.65 0.00% - {0.20%) 7.65
100% 1,37,769.93 100% (3,837.03) 100% 8.47 160% (3,828.56) |

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Name of the entity in the Group Net Assets i.c. total assets minus Share in profit/(loss) Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
ipcome
As % of (Rs. in Lakhs) As % of (Rs. in Lakhs) As % of (Rs. in Lakhs)| As % of {Rs. in Lakhs)
consolidated net consolidated consolidated consolidated total
assets profit/(loss) other comprehensive
comprehensive income
Parent
I.H.H.EIJDHLLN“N 183 55% 230033664 @ J6834% | 3 )1 LA 0.0] 168 36% 210900 |
Z11E0S {348 (e gAY 0.00% = {3.48%) (5422}
{6.05%) {11181} 0,009 = (6.05%} (1i181)
161087 16.09% 29717 0.00% = 16.09% 29717
2,540 10 £ 10% 94 0,00% - £ 10% aq.20 |
1014981 16.51% 31041 0,000 - 16.81% 310.4]
534,84 [7.50%) (13843} 0,001% - _(7.50%) (13843
994 0.00% 3, D0 = UM% =
| 2038380 {02004 {3 78} 0,00 - 0 20%) 3181
- 0.00% - 0.00% - Ui -
Eummn’w' in ull subsidiarics 3 40% 426694  0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
minalh (128 40%%) (L6099 68| (B9 13%) (1645 93)! 000% - (89 13%) (1,645 93)
108, 00% 125387441  20000% | IR4670] 20000% | 0 0011 20000% | LE46TI
The Composite Scheme of A ion and A (‘Scheme”) amongst Max Ventures and Industries Limited (‘Transferor Company’) and Max Estates Limited (‘Company’ or ‘Transferee Company’) and their
respective shareholders and Creditors was filed during the previous year under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicabl isions of the C ies Act, 2013 and Rules made

thereunder. The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Hon’ble NCLT") vide its order passed on July 03, 2023 approved the aforesaid Scheme As per the Scheme, the merger of Transferor Company
into Company has been accounted with cffect from April 01, 2022 (*Appointed Date’) to comply with the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme, which is in compliance with the MCA general circular no. 09/2019
dated August 21, 2019,

Subsquent to the period end, SEBI granted the relaxation to the Company on from the applicability of Rule 19 (2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rule 1957 for the listing of the shares on stock exchanges.
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43

Other statutory information

(i)  The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any

Benami property.

(ii)  The Group does not have any transactions with companies that are struck off.

(iti)  The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv)  The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial period.

(v)  The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi)  The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Group has not made any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The borrowings obtained by the Group from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans

were taken.

(ix) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly

executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Group.

(x) None of the entities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(xi) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(xiii) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous period.

The figures for previous period have been re-classified/ re-grouped, wherever necesasary, to comespond with the current period's
classification/disclosure.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Max Estates Limited
Chartered Accountants
I€AI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Dinesh Kumar Mittal Sahil Vachani
(Director) (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Membership Number: 108044 DIN: 00040000 DIN: 00761695
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Nitin Kumar Kansal Abhishek Mishra
(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Place : Gurugram Place : Noida

Date: October 19, 2023 Date: October 19, 2023




